

J1
52b
35
2

GENERAL LIBRARY
NOV 16 1954
UNIVERSITY OF GEORGIA

Bulletin of the University of Georgia

Vol. XXIII

JANUARY, 1923

Number 5

Constitution and By-Laws OF THE Georgia High School Associations



Joseph S. Stewart, Chairman

List of State Winners 1906-1922

Entered at the Post Office at Athens, Ga., as Second Class Matter, August 31, 1905, under Act of Congress of July 16th, 1904. Issued Monthly by the University.

Serial Number 338

Journal of the University of Georgia

Volume 10, Number 1
1971



Editorial Board
Editor: [Name]
Associate Editor: [Name]
Editorial Board: [List of names]

**CONSTITUTION AND BY-LAWS OF THE GEORGIA STATE AND
DISTRICT HIGH SCHOOL MEETS AS AMENDED**

Constitution and Rules of the Georgia High School Association

District.

ARTICLE I—Name.

This organization shall be known as the Georgia High School Association.

ARTICLE II—Object.

The object of this association shall be to promote in Georgia the cause of education through the establishment and adequate maintenance and equipment of public high schools in every county as a necessity in any modern system of education, a right of every boy and girl, rural and urban, and an efficient means of linking the elementary public schools with the colleges and universities and of improving the scholarship of the rank and file of the high school teachers and the intelligence and efficiency of the entire citizenship of the state. It purposes to promote in the schools the study of public speaking, to standardize and encourage athletics in the schools, and to promote county, district, and state contests in debate, declamation, and other forms of literary work and in athletics.

ARTICLE III—Membership.

Section 1. The accredited high schools, and other four-year high schools elected by the District Committee of any congressional district shall constitute upon action by the executive committee the District High School Association for that district. All such four-year high schools holding membership in the district association are members of the State Association. Junior colleges and preparatory departments of colleges are ineligible.

Sec. 2. The officers of the district association shall consist of a president, a vice-president, a secretary-treasurer. These, with two others, shall constitute the district executive committee. The state officers shall consist of a president ex-officio, Professor of Secondary Education at the University, a vice-president, and a secretary-treasurer, elected by the state executive committee. These, with the district presidents and two members of the University staff appointed by the president, shall constitute the state executive committee. The University committee on arrangements of the state meet shall be appointed by the Chancellor.

Sec. 3. The duties of the various officers and committees shall be those usually devolving upon such officers and committees.

Sec. 4. Each school of a district association shall have one vote, and the majority of schools represented shall constitute a quorum at regular and duly called special meetings. In the state meeting each district or state officer shall have one vote and a majority of the districts represented shall constitute a quorum.

Sec. 5. It shall take a two-thirds vote of the state executive committee to amend the constitution, and a majority of votes to amend

the by-laws, but changes shall not go into effect until the next annual contest.

Sec. 6. In the several districts, annual contests in declamation, music, debate, spelling, home economics and track athletics, or other forms which may be authorized by the state executive committee, which shall promote the cause of education, shall be held during the spring term, on one of two dates, in April of each year, as announced by the state president.

But the state organization must be kept intact according to congressional districts. Winners in the district contests may be sent to the annual state contest at the State University during the first or second week in June.

Each district association may by authority of its executive committee have in its district meet contests other than those herein specifically enumerated; such as penmanship, tennis, etc.; but all district committees are advised not to introduce too many novelties. Let each event have an educational value.

Sec. 7. Delegates from the district associations shall be sent to the annual convention of the Georgia Educational Association and the State High School Conference held in connection with the state contest.

Section 8. Where several four-year schools are in the county these may contest or otherwise agree among themselves for the honor of representing the county in the district contest. The principals of such high schools of a county may constitute an executive committee for said county. It is recommended that each county hold annual contests and exhibitions among the upper grade elementary pupils, and among the pupils in the lower grades of high schools under the direction of the county and high school authorities.

The principal of the county seat high school, the county superintendent of schools, the county agents, in counties having these, and four other teachers, two of whom must be ladies, will constitute the county committee for the county meet to be held between the last week in March and the second week in April. Rules and general plans must be sent out each year by the state officers for these county meets and reports made by the chairmen of the county committee to the state president of the results of the meet.

Sec. 9. Each district committee, in co-operation with the executive committee, is advised to arrange for two or more district conferences each year for the discussion of educational problems and also exercise general supervision over interscholastic contests in the district.

Sec. 10. Any school in a district meet which is represented in any event in a district meet by a student who is not eligible to participate under the rules of this association shall be suspended from membership in this association for a period of one year. The guilt of said school shall be determined by a majority vote of the district executive committee in formal open session.

Sec. 11. Each executive committee is to arrange for all of the events as authorized by the state executive committee. They shall also determine the minimum number of contests a school must enter in order to engage in the district contest.

BY-LAWS.

Section 1. Each member high school of a district shall have the right to send to the district meet one boy in declamation, one girl in recitation, one boy and one girl in the essay contest, one boy or girl in piano music, one girl in home economics, and six boys in athletics.

Sec. 2. Any one who has represented a district in an event at the state meet or who has won the first prize in any of the above district contests is ineligible to the same contest in any other year. Except in spelling, contestants must not have reached their 20th birthday at the time of the district contest. A contestant must be a bona fide student in good standing, which is interpreted to mean one that has entered school previous to January 15th of the current year and is taking at least four studies, each of which requires at least 180 minutes devoted to recitations each week, and who is making a passing grade in at least three of the studies. The last report of a pupil shall be taken as determining his eligibility under this rule; such last report being in accordance with the custom or regulations in a particular school. The studies required above shall be taken during the day in such a school and below college grade. No one shall be allowed to take part in the contests for more than four years. In music, a contestant must be a bona fide high school student in good standing, as defined above, but may study music elsewhere, provided the choosing of the contestant is made by the school authorities.

Sec. 3. There shall be one to three judges for each contest, and if possible they shall be specialists in the said contest. There shall be one or more time keepers. Judges shall be selected by the executive committee from names furnished by the local committee from persons not connected with the schools contesting, unless agreed upon by all the executive committee. Judges shall name the 1st, 2nd, and 3rd places in all contests except debate.

Sec. 4. No declamation, recitation or music selection shall be longer than eight minutes. The contestant shall be called down by the time-keeper at the end of that time. Those failing to stop when called down shall not be considered by the judges, but being called down shall not act to the detriment of the contestant.

Essay Contest.

Section 5. (a) The state president shall select one to two books from the college entrance requirements or a current topic discussed in the various newspapers and magazines as a basis for the essay contest.

The state president shall select three subjects from one of the two

topics and send them to the district secretary, sealed, said seal to be broken in the presence of the contestants, after they have assembled in the room for the contest. They must receive no coaching.

The contestants, one boy and one girl from each school, may write upon any of the three subjects selected an essay not exceeding 600 words. Two hours shall be given for writing the essay.

(b) Verbal and grammatical correctness, spelling and punctuation shall be considered of less importance than the interest and general effectiveness of the whole composition, but should have weight. The essay shall be judged by the thought, by the order and arrangement, and by the elements of style. It is a ready writers' contest and evidence of prememorized compositions shall weigh heavily against the contestant. Boys and girls essays will be graded separately and separate prizes will be given.

(c) The prize essays for each district shall be sent, just as handed to the committee of the district contest, with names on separate sheet, to the president of the state meet within five days after the district meet, instead of having the pupils come to Athens, and the judges for these papers are to be selected as the other judges for the state contests.

(d) The book from which essay subjects will be selected in 1923 is "Selections from Sidney Lanier," Chas. Scribner's Sons; price, 50c.

Spelling Contest.

Section 6. "Seventy Lessons in Spelling," American Book Co., is adopted as the basis of the spelling contests together with the agreement for \$20.00 in gold to the school winning state prize. The state president, on or about the first of April each year, shall send securely sealed, to the district secretary as many lists of words as the district may have schools entering the contest. This list will consist of 100 words—80 from the adopted speller and 20 from any source—to be spelled by the senior class of said schools on a date named by the state president in order to determine which school in the district is the winner in this contest.

This contest is to be under the direction of the district executive committee, which is to name an examiner for each contesting school, who is to be assisted by a committee of two from the faculty of the school to be named by the superintendent. This examiner is to have no connection with the school, is to be chairman of the examining committee; is to read and grade all the papers; is to be instructed as to the rules governing the contest; is to make written report of result of examination (which report is to be signed by the other members of the committee); and is to seal and mail report and examination papers to the district secretary on the same day examination is held. The sealed lists for the examination are to be sent out to the several schools by the district secretary. The secretary must notify the state president by the last week in March what schools in the district will enter the spelling contest.

The district committee may review the lists sent in. The district

president shall also send to the president of the state association the averages of all schools in his district. The president shall from this data award first, second and third places for state prizes.

Debates.

Section 7. Each school must notify the chairman of the district committee, not later than February 15th, of its intention to enter the debates for the current year. The district president will send to the state president the list of schools which have entered the debate with suggestions as to grouping of triangles within five days thereafter.

By the 10th of March the state president shall announce the final grouping of the schools in all of the districts.

Each school so grouped shall present two teams of two debaters each, one team on the affirmative and one team on the negative, the affirmative team debating at home and the negative away from home.

If any district executive committee prefers the "circle" method of conducting debates, it is authorized to use it; and the secretary will send to the state president the circle grouping as in the case of triangular method. Where schools drop out, consolidations are to be made by the district presidents.

(b) At all the contests time and order of speeches shall be as follows:

Main.

Affirmative	-----	10	minutes
Negative	-----	10	minutes
Affirmative	-----	10	minutes
Negative	-----	10	minutes

Rebutal.

Negative	-----	4	minutes
Affirmative	-----	4	minutes
Negative	-----	4	minutes
Affirmative	-----	4	minutes

(c) The question for debate for 1923 in member schools, the district and the state meet shall be: "Resolved, That boys and girls have a better chance of success in the country than in the city."

(d) Should two of the schools in any triangle fail to debate the district president shall assign the remaining school to some other group provided there is sufficient time to do so. Otherwise the remaining school shall be declared winner in that triangle. If one fails, the other two debate on the dual plan, each team sends a team to the other school, as in the triangular plan.

(e) The students constituting the debating team from a given school always stand or fall together as the representatives of the school and on the same side.

(f) In every debate there shall be three judges. A copy of the instructions as given below shall be given to each judge. In select-

ing the winners each decision shall count 1 and the votes of each judge shall count 1, a perfect score making 8 points. All the preliminary debates in the several districts shall be held on the fourth Friday night in March, and in case of a tie, the tie must be settled the following Friday night. The winning team of each triangle will be entitled to contest at the district meet, and the district president shall there arrange the winning teams, according as they have previously won, into two divisions, one division to speak on the affirmative and the other on the negative side of the question, before separate committees. If any school wins both sides of the debate the school shall be entitled to send one of the winning team to the district meet. The school must notify the district secretary one week before the meet which team will enter.

(g) It will be considered dishonorable for pupils, teachers, or followers of one school to visit the debates of another when the two schools are likely to meet on the same question.

(h) Coaching is necessary, but does not mean writing the speeches. Coaching shall be limited to (a) Instructions in the art of debating in general; (b) Help in the collection of material bearing on the question; (c) Advice, direction, suggestion, criticism, outlines and English as in regular class work; (d) drill on delivery. The coaching must be done by the school and not outside parties. Every school will observe these general principles of honesty for the sake of the pupils.

At least three days before each debate the coach of each team shall sign and send to the principal of the opposing high school the following statement: "I hereby certify that to the best of my knowledge the preparation of the argument for this debate has been the work of the members of my team who will participate."

(i) In all contests the debaters shall be separated from the audience and shall receive no coaching while the debate is in progress.

(j) A copy of the following instructions shall be given to each of the three judges: "The judges, who shall sit apart during the debate, shall judge the contest as a debate, voting without consultation "Affirmative" or "Negative" on the merits of the debate irrespective of their individual opinions as to the merits of the question. In deciding which team has done the more effective debating, the judges shall take into consideration:

(1) Argument, by which is meant the substance and value of the proof offered and its skillful use in the discussion, and not the mere number of points.

(2) Rebuttal, by which is meant *impromptu* argument used to refute the direct argument of the opposing side as made. New evidence may be submitted, but new argument is forbidden. A marked difference in the style of the rebuttal speeches and those of the direct argument is a sign of poor preparation.

(3) Effectiveness, by which is meant the combination of good English with pleasing delivery.

In case of doubt, argument shall be stressed relatively more than delivery, and rebuttal work more than main speeches, consideration being given to the directness of the rebuttal and the non-use of manuscripts. At the close of the debate each judge shall indicate his choice by ballot and deliver it to the presiding officer who shall inspect the ballot in the presence of a representative of each school and announce his decision.

Track.

Section 8. The following track events shall be held in the order named at both district and state contests: 100-yard dash, shot put, 220-yard dash, running broad jump, 120-yard low hurdles, running high jump, 440-yard dash, pole vault, half mile relay race (four men). A boy certified to for athletics may enter any athletic event for which he is eligible for his school.

No student shall be permitted to represent his school or his district in more than two individual events. This rule does not exclude him from the relay race.

The rules governing the track contests shall be found in Spalding's Official Guide where they do not conflict with these by-laws. A. G. Spalding & Bro., Atlanta, Ga., can furnish the Guide, price 10c.

Section 10. Schools having more than four years above the grammar school grades shall be limited in their contests to pupils in the four high school grades next above the highest grammar school grade. In case of question as to eligibility of any student from a school the records of Dr. J. S. Stewart shall be held on the question.

Sec. 11. The principal of the school must certify to the president of the district association the names, ages, time in school and scholarship of contestants at least one week before the contest, on eligibility blanks prepared by the state executive committee, and no one will be allowed to contest who is not thus certified to and who does not conform to the constitution and by-laws.

Sec. 12. Full lists of entries from the district must be furnished Dr. Stewart at least three weeks before the state meet. Alternates may be sent to Athens when winners can not go.

Sec. 13. A loving cup and pennant, the latter a permanent trophy, shall be given by the state association for the district winning the greatest number of points in the athletic contests, the cup going for the year to the school winning the most points. The winning district will each year be engraved on the cup. A similar cup shall be offered, under similar conditions to the district winning the greatest number of points in the literary contests. (The association has accepted an athletic loving cup donated by The Atlanta Constitution, and a literary loving cup donated by Dr. S. V. Sanford).

The association has also renewed a five-year contract with Brenau Conservatory giving an \$80.00 scholarship to the winner in the music contest in each district and a \$300 scholarship to the winner of the state music prize, the winner of this not receiving a scholarship in her district.

Sec. 14. The president of the state meet is authorized to draw for places in the literary events and to arrange for the judges, prizes, and general program of the meet.

Sec. 15. In all the meets, the first prize shall count five points, second place three points, and third place one point, in estimating the total score for cups. Where there is a tie the points shall be divided. Prizes for cooking and sewing will count in the literary contest in district or state meet.

Sec. 16. In the state meet the relay team may be made up of the winning athletes from the district, or the winning relay team of the district may contest.

Sec. 17. The several associations shall charge such admission fee as is recommended by the executive committee or district president, the proceeds to go towards defraying the expenses of judges, printing, delegates to the state meeting, etc., and for "The Quarterly."

In every case at least part of these funds shall go to the district committee and cannot be claimed by the local committee.

Sec. 18. The treasurer of each district association is required to make to the district executive committee an itemized statement of income and outgo of all funds with vouchers attached. Balances are to be turned over to the new treasurer.

The district committee may charge an entrance fee of \$1.00 for each contestant to help pay expenses of winners to state meet.

STATE WINNERS, 1908-1922.

The interest in these annual contests is such that we believe a grouping of the winners, since 1908, would be interesting and worth while.

Declamations

1908, Leroy Suddeth, Cornelia, 9th; 1909, Cecil Davis, Warrenton, 10th; 1910, George Donaldson, Statesboro, 10th; 1911, Joe S. Stewart, Jr., Athens, 8th; 1912, James Ray, Monroe, 5th; 1913, Madden Hatcher, Columbus, 4th; 1914, Edmund Anchors, Warrenton, 10th; 1915, Roger Beach, Sandersville, 10th; 1916, H. J. Kennedy, Barnesville, 6th; 1917, Charles White, Covington, 8th; 1918, Sumpter Kelley, Cairo, 2nd; 1919, Gordon Watson, Rome, 7th; 1920, Maitland Lawrence, Rome, (Darlington) 7th; 1921, Chas. Allen, Calhoun, 7th; 1922, Robt. Oliver, Kirkwood, 5th.

Recitations

1908, Carwee Davis, Warrenton, 10th; 1909, Kathleen Holder, Jefferson, 9th; 1910, Susie Anderson, Cornelia, 9th; 1911, Anna Morrison, Waycross, 11th; 1912, Louise Walker, Monroe, 8th; 1913, Ocie Johnson, Warrenton, 10th; 1914, Louise Reynolds, Forsyth, 6th; 1915, Mary G. Payne, Elberton, 8th; 1916, Mary McLendon, Rome, 7th; 1917, Gertrude Parham, Athens, 8th; 1918, Mildred Pitner, Washington, 8th; 1919, Thelma Harrell Savannah, 1st; 1920,

Helen Bagley, Newnan, 4th; 1921, Katherine Mitchell, LaGrange, 4th; 1922, Christine Weatherly, Baxley, 11th.

Music

1908, Hugh Hodgson, Athens, 8th; 1909, Arnold Duckworth, Madison, 8th; 1910, Aretha Moore, Swainsboro, 1st; 1911, Julia Winn Varnadoe, Valdosta, 11th; 1912, Willie Bell Barbutt, Valdosta, 11th; 1913, Louise Pearce, Cuthbert, 3rd; 1914, Vera Inman, Albany, 2nd; 1915, Virginia Sledge, Rome, 7th; 1916, Edna Oliver, McRae, 12th; 1917, Mildred Johnson, Hartwell, 8th; 1918, Lillian Stewart, Waycross, 11th; 1919, Jewel Wynne, Cochran, 12th; 1920, Ruth McDougald, Statesboro, 1st; 1921, Freeman Treadwell, Forsyth, 6th; 1922, Aurelia Davis, Hartwell, 8th .

Spelling

1910, Annie Loue Stowe, Newborn, 8th; 1911, Earline Hataway, 11th; 1912, Pierce Thomas, Vidalia, 11th; 1913, Kilso Mullen, Greensboro, 8th; 1914, Marie Thomas, Baxley, 11th; 1915, B. F. Register, Metter, 1st; 1916, Beulah Hulsey, (1) Metter; Margaret Davis, (10) Tennille; 1917, Clarence Paulk, Tifton, 2nd; 1918, Walter Brown, Metter, (1); Warren Mathews, Decatur, (5); Calig Byrd, Fort Valley, (12); Trelle Daniel, Metter, (1); Martha Bell, (3), Dawson; Kathryn Tribble, (9), Jefferson. Tie. 1919, Pelham High School, 2nd; 1920, Commerce High School, 8th; 1921, Winder, 9th; 1922, Winder, 9th.

Essays

1908, May Gheesling, Greensboro, 8th; 1909, Helen Barnes, Augusta, 10th; A. S. McQueen, Vidalia, 11th; 1910, Miriam Pope, Monticello, 8th; M. C. Little, Louisville, 10th; 1911, Mary Knight, Moultrie, 2nd; W. F. Sweat, Waycross, 11th; 1912, Clara Barrett, Toccoa, 9th; Clyde Ramsey, Toccoa, 9th; 1913, Marion Williams, Macon, 6th; John Griger, Albany, 2nd; 1914, Marion Davis, Warrenton, 10th; Tom Higgins, Montezuma, 3rd; 1915, Mae Sharp, Commerce, 9th; Charles Collins, Cartersville, 7th; 1916, Annie Fulghum, Eastman, 12th; ——— Murphy, Newnan, 4th; 1917, Helen Hall, Decatur, 5th; Paul Bennett, Quitman, 11th; 1918, Helen A. Faw, Marietta, 7th; Hume Eastman, Rome, 7th; 1919, Edna Collum, Dalton, 7th; Hubert Eberhardt, Winder, 9th; 1920, Mary Spooner, Tifton, 2nd; Thomas Shephard, Fort Valley, 12th; 1921, Edith House, Winder, 9th; Dan Blitch, Statesboro, 10th; 1922, Clyde Jones, Hogansville, 4th; Ernest Camp, Monroe, 8th.

Debates

1913, L. H. Tippet and Mack Rogers, Baxley, 11th; 1914, Loyd Wilhoit and Geo. Manor, Warrenton, 10th; 1915, Reid Comfort and Kelso Mullins, Greensboro, 8th; 1916, Ralph O'Sheal and Herschel Foreman, Sylvester, 2nd; 1917, Geo. Trapnell and Geo. Hendricks, Metter, 1st; 1918, Flake and Franklin, Lithonia, 5th; 1919, Earl

Ewing and Harold Almand, Conyers, 5th; 1920, Edith. House and Alton Young, Winder, 9th; 1921, Albert Anderson and Alton Parker, Millen, 1st; 1922, Robert Segert and Evelyn Thompson, LaGrange, 4th.

Questions for Debate

1913, Resolved, That Georgia should grant the same right of suffrage to women as to men; 1914, Resolved, That municipalities in Georgia should own and operate plants for supplying light, water and transportation; 1915, Resolved, That capital punishment should be abolished in this state; 1916, Resolved, That the appointment of judges by the Governor, subject to confirmation by the Senate, would be better than the present method for Georgia; 1917, Resolved, That Georgia should adopt the Constitutional Amendment fixing mill taxes in both state and county for public school purposes as expressed in the Persons bills; 1918, Resolved, That the United States should adopt a system of military training modeled on that of Switzerland; 1919, Resolved, That Georgia should grant the suffrage to women on equal terms with men; 1920, Resolved, That the county school superintendent should be elected by the county board of education, in principle, as city school superintendents are usually elected by their boards; 1921, Resolved, That the Constitution should give to the General Assembly the power to impose an income tax not to exceed 15 per cent of the Federal income tax levied in this state; 1922, Resolved, That the motion picture theater, as now conducted, is beneficial to the community; 1923, Resolved, That boys and girls have a better chance of success in the country than in the city.

100 Yard Dash

1909, Kirby Malone, Monticello, 8th; 1910, Harry Scott, Griffin, 6th; 1911, ——— Ward, Locust Grove, 11th; 1912, ——— Simpson, Toccoa, 9th; 1913, Mobley, Thomson, 10th; 1914, Callaway, 11th; 1915, Clyde Williams, Quitman, 11th; 1916, Murphy, Newnan, 4th; 1917, Hugh Hartley, Fort Valley, 12th; 1918, Fred Swabb, Savannah, 1st; 1919, Jules Benton, Savannah, 1st; 1920, Roy Payne, Royston, 8th; 1921, Robt. Reynolds, Greensboro, 8th; 1922, Everitt Haynes, West Point, 4th.

220 Yard Dash

1909, Abbott, Louisville, 10th; 1910, Kirby Malone, Monticello, 8th; 1911, McWhorter, Blackshear, 11th; 1912, Cochran, 6th; 1913, Mobley, Thomson, 10th; 1914, Bradford, 10th; 1915, Chambers, Decatur, 5th; 1916, Murphy, Newnan, 4th; 1917, Julius Scott, Thomasville, 2nd; 1918, Fred Swabb, Savannah, 1st; 1919, S. A. Connor, Marietta, 7th; 1920, Roy Payne, Royston, 8th; 1921, Robt. Reynolds, Greensboro, 8th; 1922, Clayton Lindsey, Thomasville, 2nd.

440 Yard Dash

1909, Malone, Monticello, 8th; 1910, ———; 1911, Clary, Thomson, 10th; 1912, Simpson, Toccoa, 9th; 1913, Ryman, 3rd; 1914, Mobley, Thomson, 10th; 1915, Maulk, Milledgeville, 10th; 1916, Gustave Ensel, Savannah, 1st; 1917, George Williams, Tifton, 2nd; 1918, Dixon Allison, Savannah, 1st; 1919, Clarence Jolly, Cartersville, 7th; 1920, Herring, Tifton, 2nd; 1921, McMillan, Ashburn, 3rd; 1922, Fuller, Newnan, 4th.

Low Hurdles

1909, Weeks, 10th; 1910, Malcolm Vonderau, Athens, 8th; 1911, Crump, Macon, 6th; 1912, Thompson, 8th; 1913, Moon, Baxley, 11th; 1914, Swann, 10th; 1915, English, Warrenton, 10th; 1916, DeBeugrine, Warrenton, 10th; 1917, Frank Willis, Tifton, 2nd; 1918, Rexford Culpepper, Rome, 7th; 1919, Dixon Allison, Calhoun, 7th; 1920, McMillan, Ashburn, 3rd; 1921, Jones, Cartersville, 7th; 1922, James Melton, Baxley, 11th.

High Jump

1909, Ledbetter, 7th; 1910, E. C. B. Danforth, Augusta, 10th; 1911, Gilbert, Tennille, 10th; 1912, Simpson, Toccoa, 9th; 1913, Johnson, 8th; 1914, McDonald, 3rd; 1915, L. Hollingsworth, Dalton, 7th; 1916, Ellis, Milledgeville, 10th; 1917, Rigsby, Augusta, 10th; 1918, Poore, Royston, 8th; 1919, Funderbunk, Rome, 7th; 1920, Stevens, LaGrange, 4th; 1921, Sneed, Carrollton, 4th; 1922, Ed Pierce, Carrollton, 4th.

Broad Jump

1909, Colley, Washington, 8th; 1910, Frank Cheney, Athens, 8th; 1911, Shaw, Cartersville, 7th; 1912, Rumel, 6th; 1913, Phillips, 3rd; 1914, Day, 6th; 1915, Clyde Williams, Quitman, 11th; Hardeman, 10th; Louisville; 1916, Scarboro, Moultrie, 2nd; 1917, Barwick, Thomson, 10th; 1918, Arnold Anderson, Statesboro, 1st; 1919, Dixon Allison, Calhoun, 7th; 1920, McMillan, Ashburn, 3rd; 1921, Artie New, Washington, 8th; 1922, Ed Pierce, Carrollton, 4th.

Shot Put

1909, Colley, Washington, 8th; 1910, Fred Haselton, Athens, 8th; 1911, Smith, Elberton, 8th; 1912, Cates, 5th; 1913, Chapman, 4th; 1914, Sikes, 9th; 1915, Goldstein, Griffin, 6th; 1916, Charles Davis, Rome, 7th; 1917, Frank Willis, Tifton, 2nd; 1918, Beecher Funderbunk, Rome, 7th; 1919, Lloyd Wood, Dalton, 7th; 1920, Joe Usry, Thomson, 10th; 1921, Parker, Carrollton, 4th; 1922, John Tippins, Rome, 7th.

Relay

1909, ———; 1910, Cheney, Haselton, Vonderau, Athens, 8th; 1911, White, Williamson, Beasley, Morgan, Rockmart, 7th; 1912, Cochran, Hammond, Hillsmon, Crump, 6th; 1913, ———, 8th; 1914, ———; 1915, ———; 1916, ———, Newnan, 4th; 1917,

Conyers, Funderbunk, Waldrup, Trammel, Cartersville, 7th; 1918, Funderbunk, Esserman, Culpepper, Bulkholter, Rome, 7th; 1919, Lamar Harrell, Jarrell Wilkins, J. G. McDaniel, Wilton Cobb, Eastman, 12th; 1920, ———, Dalton, 7th; 1921, Berry School, Mt. Berry, 7th; 1922, Fuller, Collins, Taylor, Goodrum, 4th.

Pole Vault

1917, ———; 1918, Castleberry, Gainesville, 9th; 1919, Quigg Tucker, Conyers, 5th; 1920, Bumont Harrison, Winder, 9th, and Garigg Tucker, Conyers, 5th, tie; 1921, Hitchcock, Dallas, 7th; 1922, Logan, Newnan, 4th.

DISTRICT AND STATE OFFICERS, GEORGIA STATE MEETS,

1923

Joseph S. Stewart, Chairman, Athens; Superintendent J. P. Cash, Vice-President, Winder; J. H. Purks, Secretary, Madison; and S. V. Sanford, W. O. Payne on Executive Committee for University.

First District—F. A. Brinson, Millen, President; T. M. Purcell, Metter, Vice-President; R. M. Monts, Statesboro, Secretary-Treasurer; R. O. Powell, Claxton, and W. E. Ellarbee, Brooklet.

Second District—L. H. Browning, Norman Park, President; J. Harold Saxon, Moultrie, Vice-President; E. G. Elcan, Bainbridge, Secretary-Treasurer; R. E. Brooks, Albany, and W. J. Chisholm, Meigs.

Third District—G. G. Singleton, Cordele, President; W. E. Monts, Dawson, Vice-President; W. P. Martin, Lumpkin, Secretary-Treasurer; J. S. Roach, Ashburn, and E. H. Joiner, Reynolds.

Fourth District—H. R. McLarty, Hogansville, President; R. H. Harris, Woodbury, Vice-President; B. F. Pickett, Newnan, Secretary-Treasurer; Knox Walker, Carrollton, and Charles E. Lawrence, Chipley.

Fifth District—G. W. Glausier, Decatur, President; J. T. McGee, East Point, Vice-President; J. S. Fleming, Conyers, Secretary-Treasurer; L. O. Freeman, College Park, and W. T. Foster, Fairburn.

Sixth District—J. R. Berry, Griffin, President; M. A. Smith, Thomaston, Vice-President; A. J. Hargrove, Zebulon, Secretary-Treasurer; J. H. Johnson, Gray, and J. T. Henry, Forsyth.

Seventh District—D. H. Perryman, LaFayette, President; L. C. Evans, Cartersville, Secretary-Treasurer; M. C. Allen, Calhoun, Vice-President; J. E. Purks, Cedartown, and B. F. Quigg, Rome.

Eighth District—Lamar Ferguson, Lavonia, President; B. M. Grier, Elberton, Vice-President; J. I. Allman, Hartwell, Secretary-Treasurer; J. T. Purks, Madison, and C. V. Neuffer, Eatonton.

Ninth District—J. A. Mershon, Gainesville, President; Edmund Wroe, Toccoa, Vice-President; Mrs. Mary White, Canton, Secretary-Treasurer; J. O. Stubbs, Lawrenceville, and J. F. Muldrow, Commerce.

Tenth District—J. F. Lambert, Sandersville, President; J. D.

Nash, Crawfordville, Vice-President; C. C. McCollum, Wrens, Secretary-Treasurer; Braswell Deen, Tennille, and F. Cumming, Warrenton.

Eleventh District—S. E. Denton, Baxley, President; J. C. Bowie, Ocilla, Vice-President; J. B. Mott, Valdosta, Secretary-Treasurer; W. C. Langley, Quitman, and R. D. Eadie, Brunswick.

Twelfth District—L. M. Wilson, Abbeville, President; M. W. Harris, Hawkinsville, Vice-President; W. L. Downs, Vidalia, Secretary-Treasurer; G. E. Usher, Lyons, and Ralph Newton, Ft. Valley.